
Committee Agenda   

 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee East 
Wednesday, 4th December, 2013 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Subcommittee East, which will 
be held at:  
 
Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
on Wednesday, 4th December, 2013 
at 7.30 pm . 
 Glen Chipp 

Chief Executive 
 

Democratic Services 
Officer 

Mark Jenkins - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564607 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), K Avey, W Breare-Hall, 
A Boyce, Mrs H Brady, T Church, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, Mrs M McEwen, 
R Morgan, J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission. 
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the 
meeting. 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 4 December 2013 
 

2 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties). 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.” 
 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 26) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee, held on 6 November 

2013 (attached). 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 27 - 58) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 4 December 2013 
 

3 

 
Background Papers: 
 
(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.   
 
(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the properties 
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. PROBITY IN PLANNING - APPEAL DECISIONS, 1 APRIL 2013 TO 30 
SEPTEMBER 2013  (Pages 59 - 116) 

 
  Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 

 
 9. DELEGATED DECISIONS   

 
  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 

determined by the Head of Planning & Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of the Sub-Committee could be inspected in the 
Members’ Room or on the Planning & Economic Development Information Desk at the 
Civic Offices in Epping. 
 

 10. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 4 December 2013 
 

4 

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw 
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then 
withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the 
application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are 
required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee East 2013-14 
Members of the Committee: 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  

Cllr Jones 

Cllr Waller 

Cllr Avey Cllr Boycel 

Cllr Breare-
Hall 

Cllr Church Cllr Gode Cllr Grigg 

Cllr 
McEwen 

Cllr Morgan Cllr Philip Cllr Rolfe Cllr Stallan 

Cllr 
Whitbread 

Cllr Janet 
Whitehouse 

Cllr Jon 
Whitehouse 

Cllr Keska 

Cllr Jacobs 

Cllr Brady 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee East Date: 6 November 2013  
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30  - 9.13 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Mrs S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), K Avey, A Boyce, 
Mrs H Brady, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, 
J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and 
J M Whitehouse 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: W Breare-Hall and T Church 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), C Neilan (Landscape Officer & 
Arboriculturist), A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer) and R Perrin 
(Democratic Services Assistant) 
 

  
 

59. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 
 

60. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

61. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
That, subject to the substitution of the words "Councillor J Philip" for the 
words "Councillor J Phillip" in Minute 55(b) (Declarations of Interest), the 
minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 9 October 2013 be 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
 

62. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Brady 
declared a non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of her 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Area Planning Subcommittee East  6 November 2013 

2 

husband being a trustee of the applicant. The Councillor had determined that she 
would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 
 

• EPF/1886/13 Rear of 8 Margaret Road, Epping. 
 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor J H 
Whitehouse declared a non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda. 
The Councillor had determined that she would leave the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

 
• EPF/1887/13 22 Regent Road, Epping 

 
(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Avey declared 
a non pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda. The Councillor had 
determined that his interests were non-pecuniary and would remain in the meeting 
for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/1924/13 3a Hemnall Street, Epping. 
 

63. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee. 
 

64. THREAT OF SPECIAL MEASURES AND REFUNDING OF PLANNING FEES  
 
The Principal Planning officer presented a report on the threat of special measures 
and the potential refunding of planning fees. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer reported that the Government had introduced a new 
policy on 1 October 2013 whereby a local authority had to refund any planning fees if 
it failed to determine an application within 26 weeks. In addition, those local 
authorities who had 20% or more of their decisions overturned at appeal, or 
determined 30% or less of their major applications within the 26 week threshold over 
a rolling two-year period, would be placed in ‘Special Measures’. This would allow an 
Applicant to submit a major planning application, and its fee, direct to the Planning 
Inspectorate for determination. 
 
The Principle Planning Officer highlighted that the time taken to determine major 
planning applications would need to be closely monitored to ensure that the Council 
did not lose income unnecessarily. There were potential problems foreseen with 
planning applications that required the signing of a Section 106 legal agreement, 
particularly if the delay was being caused by the Applicant. However, an extension of 
time for the determination of a major planning application could be agreed with the 
Applicant, and this option would be pursued wherever possible. It was possible that 
the terms of reference for the District Development Control Committee and the Area 
Planning Sub-Committees would be reviewed to ensure that the time taken to 
consider major planning applications could be reduced. A major planning application 
was defined as a development of 10 or more dwellings or 1,000 square metres of 
floor space. 
 
The Committee shared the concerns that the report highlighted and foresaw 
difficulties if a Section 106 legal agreement had not been signed by the Applicant in 
time as the Council would then have no option but to refuse the application and rely 
on a sympathetic hearing by the Planning Inspector at the subsequent appeal. The 

Page 10



Area Planning Subcommittee East  6 November 2013 

3 

Council had to ensure that it did not enter special circumstances through poor 
performance.  
 
The Sub-Committee requested that notification were sent out to Members of the 
planning Sub-Committees and particular the Ward Members as soon as possible, in 
order for Members to arrange site visits before the meetings. Consequently enabling 
Members to make decisions as soon as possible. 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1)  That the new threat of planning fees being returned for planning applications 
not decided within 26 weeks of being validated be noted; 
 
(2)  That the threat of the Council entering ‘Special Measures’ if major planning 
applications were not determined in a timely fashion or too many decisions being 
overturned at Appeal be noted; 
 
(3)  That the need for the Sub-Committee to determine planning applications in a 
timely manner be noted; and 
 
(4)  That, where necessary, Applicants be encouraged by the Assistant Director of 
Planning & Economic Development (Development Control) to sign pre and post 
application agreements to extend the time period for determination so as to minimise 
the risk of the Council having to return planning fees or falling into ‘Special 
Measures’. 
 

65. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 9 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached to these minutes. 

 
66. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1730/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Bowes House 

High Street 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9FB 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

TPO/EPF/01/00 
G1 - Yew x 20 - Reduce height of 18 trees approximately 3 metres, 
as specified 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=552870 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The works authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

2 All work authorised by this consent shall be undertaken in a manner consistent with 
British Standard 3998 (2010) (or with any similar replacement Standard). 
 

 

5Page 13



Report Item No:2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1919/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Forest House 

Thornwood Road 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 6SX 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

TPO/EPF/13/08 
T5 - Robinia - Fell 
T6 - Robinia -Fell 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553870 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The works authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

2 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

 

6 Page 14



Report Item No:3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2053/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Winchelsea House 

High Road 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4DD 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

TPO/EPF/26/91 
Sycamore - Fell  
Beech - Fell 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=554650 
 
The Tree Officer pointed out that the TPO reference number is incorrect and this was amended. 
 
In addition he clarified that the house is Grade II Listed not Grade II* as reported.  He explained 
also that he visited the site that day and the trees are visible from parts of Highfield Place and that 
although the Beech tree clearly has structural faults these have not been extensively investigated 
and it may not be absolutely necessary to fell it, but on balance, given its limited remaining 
lifespan, the recommendation remains to grant.  Members agree the recommendation. 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 

7Page 15



Report Item No:4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2113/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Durrington House 

Sheering Lower Road 
Sheering 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM17 0NE 
 

PARISH: Sheering 
 

WARD: Lower Sheering 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

TPO/EPF/47/10  
G1 - Horse Chestnut - Fell  
 

DECISION:  Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=554950 
 
Councillor Morgan reported that the Parish Council had no objection to the proposal. 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

2 The felling authorised by this consent shall be carried out only after the Local 
Planning Authority has received, in writing, 5 working days prior notice of such 
works. 
 

 

8 Page 16



Report Item No:5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1779/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Pound Field rear of 29 to 69 

Bell Common 
Epping 
Essex 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Construction of a 20m x 40m horse exercise area. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553058 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved Location Map, Layout Plan, Detail of Fence and Sleeper Construction 
Plan, and drawing no. 1936-4 Rev: C 
 

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those specified within the submitted application, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

4 The horse exercise area hereby permitted shall be used solely in conjunction with 
horses kept permanently at the site known as Pound Field, Bell Common, and shall 
not be used by horses brought onto the site for competitions or events or with the 
primary purpose of using the exercise area. 
 

5 No external lighting shall be installed without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 

9Page 17



Report Item No:6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1886/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Rear of 8 Margaret Road 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 5BP 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Erection of single storey affordable dwelling and ancillary works 
including vehicle access and crossing. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553651 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved Location Plan and drawing no: 2923/1. 
 

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those specified within the submitted application, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part A, Class A and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

5 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents and visitors vehicles. 
 

6 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

7 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

10 Page 18



Report Item No:7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1887/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 22 Regent Road 

Epping 
Essex 
CM16 5DL 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Double storey side and double/single storey rear extensions. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553670 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 The proposed window opening in the flank elevation at first floor level shall be fitted 
with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor 
of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in 
that condition. 
 

 

11Page 19



Report Item No:8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1891/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land r/o 59-61 High Road  

North Weald  
Essex 
CM16 6HP 
 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 
 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Erection of bungalow. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Refer to District Development Control Committee  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553693 
 
Members voted on the recommendation to grant and this was agreed by an 8-4 vote with 5 
abstentions.  However, 5 Members then stood to exercise the right to refer the matter to the 
District Development Control Committee for determination. 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1291/07d, 1291/08c, 1291/09a, 1291/15A, MP/HR/01 Rev: 
A2 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

5 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents and visitors vehicles. 
 

6 Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved, measures shall be taken to 
ensure that there are no obstructions over 600mm in height within 1 metre of the 
highway boundary on both sides of the vehicle access. Such pedestrian visibility 
splays shall be retained thereafter. 
 

12 Page 20



7 The public’s right and ease of passage over public footpath no. 45 North Weald shall 
be maintained free and unobstructed at all times. 
 

8 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. The assessment shall demonstrate that 
adjacent properties shall not be subject to increased flood risk and, dependant upon 
the capacity of the receiving drainage, shall include calculations of any increased 
storm run-off and the necessary on-site detention. The approved measures shall be 
carried out prior to the substantial completion of the development hereby approved 
and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the approved management 
and maintenance plan. 
 

9 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan, Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS 5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - Recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 

10 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, 
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any 
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same 
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the 
same place. 
 

11 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

12 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.   
 
Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 

13Page 21



or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works. 
 
Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered. 
 

13 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 

14 Page 22



Report Item No:9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1924/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 3A Hemnall Street  

Epping  
Essex  
CM16 4LR 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Hemnall 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Demolition of the existing dwelling and garage building and 
erection of 6 no. 2 bedroom flats and alterations to the vehicular 
entrance and front boundary, part of which falls within the 
conservation area. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=553894 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: BRD/12/042/001, BRD/12/042/002, BRD/12/042/003, 
BRD/12/042/004, BRD/12/042/005, OS 539-12.3 
 

3 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself.  
 

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 

15Page 23



as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

5 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan, Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS 5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - Recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation. 
 

6 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.   
 
Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works. 
 
Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered. 
 

7 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 08.00 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 Prior to the first occupation of the development, details of how the existing vehicular 
access onto Station Road shall be permanently closed, incorporating the 
reinstatement to full height of the footway and dropped kerbs, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with the 
Highway Authority. The works shall be implemented prior to occupation of the 
development, and retained thereafter in accordance with the approved details. 
 

9 Prior to first occupation of the development, a Residential Travel Information Pack, 
as approved by Essex County Council, shall be provided and implemented to the 
future occupants of the dwellings and shall include six one day travel vouchers for 
use with the relevant local public transport operator. 
 

10 Prior to the occupation of the development the cycle parking facilities shall be 
provided on site and retained thereafter for use by residents and visitors. 
 

11 Prior to the commencement of the development, details showing the means to 
prevent the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming 
operational and shall be retained thereafter. 
 

16 Page 24



12 Any gates provided at the vehicular access shall be inward opening only and shall 
be set back a minimum of 6 metres from the back edge of the carriageway. 
 

13 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 5 metres of the highway boundary of the site. 
 

14 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed 
bathroom window opening(s) in the third floor rear facing elevation shall be entirely 
fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the 
floor of the room in which the window is installed and the remaining rear facing third 
floor windows shall be fitted with obscured glazing  (and have fixed frames) up to a 
height of 1.7m above the floor of the room in which the window is inserted, and  be 
permanently retained in that condition. 

 

17Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’ 

4 December 2013 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1 EPF/1549/13 Former Allotments  
Coopers Hill  
Chipping Ongar  
Essex  
CM5 9EE 

Refuse Permission 28 

2 EPF/1613/13 19B Forest Drive 
Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7EX 

Grant Permission 
(with conditions) 

36 

3 EPF/1949/13 MSK Stores Ltd  
The White House  
Market Place  
Abridge  
Essex 
RM4 1UA 

Grant Permission 44 

4 EPF/1953/13 1 Tuttleby Cottages  
Manor Road  
Lambourne End  
Romford  
Essex 
RM4 1NA 

Grant Permission 
(with conditions) 

50 

5 EPF/2099/13 Brook Cottage 
Mutton Row 
Stanford Rivers 
Ongar 
Essex 

Grant Permission 
(with conditions) 

54 

 
  
  
  

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



 
123  

 
 

 
  

 

42.7m

4 3
. 3 m

4

19

6

Court

G
ro
u v

i ll e

Du
ns

te
r

Tower

Garage

P i p
s  C

o tt
a g

e

24

W
oo

dv
ille

1 3

30

2 7

2 1

2 5

40

32
1

44
to

6

1

5

3

2 1

18

16

11

12

2

Dragons

The Two

2

3

(PH)Brewers

Hall

5

7

2

910
8

21

BU S H Y L E A

J A
C K

S O
N

S  
C L

C OOP E R S  M E W S

GVC
E l

 S
u b

 S
t a

C a r  P a r k

P a t h  ( u m )
Allotment

Ongar

TCB Gardens

FB

Bridge

LB

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 1 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1549/13 
Site Name: Former Allotments, Coopers Hill  

Chipping Ongar, CM5 9EE 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 28



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1549/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Former Allotments  

Coopers Hill  
Chipping Ongar  
Essex  
CM5 9EE 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Kastriot Rexha 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Change of use to car wash and valeting facility (Sui Generis). 
Provision of car wash building and office building, new surfacing 
and waiting area. New gates, upgraded access and retention of 
existing access and landscaping. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=552013 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The proposed development is within the Green Belt where development is 
inappropriate and by definition harmful, the proposed car wash facility and structures 
are contrary to the aims and objectives of policy GB2A of the Adopted Local Plan 
and Alterations and the objectives of the NPPF. 
 

2 The proposed development is located within the functional flood plain in flood zone 
3. The proposed development would be at high risk of flooding and would increase 
flood risk elsewhere due to a reduction in on site drainage and flood water storage, 
therefore the proposals are contrary to policy U2A of the Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations and the objectives of the NPPF. 
 

3 The proposal would create a substandard access on a stretch of highway where the 
main purpose is carrying of traffic between centres (it is a main distributor highway). 
Vehicles using the access would introduce a further point of traffic conflict to the 
detriment of highway safety contrary to policies ST2 and ST4 of the Adopted Local 
Plan and Alterations and the objectives of the NPPF. 
 

4 The access proposed is too close to the adjacent access, which serves an existing 
car wash and café. The proposed access would appear as a singular wide access, 
resulting in confusion and conflict between vehicles . Furthermore the access does 
not allow sufficient room for a vehicle to approach the carriageway at right angles, 
leading to oblique manoeuvres which will cause confusion and delay on Coopers 
Hill, creating a hazard to the detriment of highway safety and contrary to policies 
ST2 and ST4 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and the objectives of the 
NPPF. 
 

Page 29



5 The proposals fail to demonstrate that the development proposed can take place 
without harm to protected trees onsite. Therefore the proposals are unacceptable in 
principle and contrary to policy LL10 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and 
the objectives of the NPPF. 
 

6 The proposed development would result in a use and structures that would appear 
incongruous and visually intrusive in the street scene to the detriment of the 
character of the area and contrary to policies CP2, DBE1 and DBE4 of the Adopted 
Local Plan and Alterations and the objectives of the NPPF. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application that is considered by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development as appropriate to be presented for a Committee 
decision (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council 
function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(k)) 
 
Description of Site:  
 
The site is the former allotment area of Ongar, next to Cripsey Brook, immediately after the bridge 
over the brook when travelling south. The site is currently vacant, within the Green Belt, the flood 
plain and immediately next to the Conservation Area. The site contains a number of preserved 
trees along the boundary with the brook and by the proposed access. The site has been recently 
cleared and to a degree surfaced. The site is within the open ribbon of land that follows the course 
of Cripsey Brook through Ongar. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks planning permission to change the use of the site to a car wash, to provide 
an access road around the site, with parking area and a car wash building 4m x 30m reaching 
3.5m in height and office building 4m x 3m reaching 3m high. 
 
The car wash business is to replace that currently located at Banson’s Yard where planning 
permission has been granted for redevelopment for housing under EPF/0461/12. This permission 
makes no provision for the relocation of existing businesses.  
 
Officers have referred this application to committee due to the high level of public interest 
expressed during the application. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
None 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations 
The following policies have been found to be compliant with the NPPF in respect to this 
application.  
CP1 – Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt 
ST2 – Accessibility of development 
ST4 – Highways Considerations 

Page 30



ST6 - Parking 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for Landscape retention 
U2A – Development in Flood Risk Areas 
 
Also relevant are the policies and planning principles contained within the National Planning Policy 
Framework (‘The Framework’).   
 
Summary of Representations: 
6 immediate neighbouring properties were notified and a site notice was erected and the following 
responses have been received: 
 
ONGAR PARISH COUNCIL: Strongly objects to this application which threatens highway safety. 
Whilst recognising the value of the applicant’s business, the effect on the street scene and the 
mass of the proposed building together with environmental factors concerning protected species 
and the Green Belt status of the site mean that this is an unsupportable application. 
 
Letters of Objection have been received from the following addresses: 
 
Ongar:   
10 Bansons Way, 10 Great Stony Park, 11 Kilnfield, 18 Marks Avenue, 26 Castle Street, 
29 Onslow Gardens, 31 Green Walk, 37, 45, 74 Longfields, 38 Landview Gardens, 50, 53 
Kettlebury Way,  East Lodge  Greensted Road, Ongar Bridge Motor Company  24-26 High 
Street,  Victoria Road, Pips Cottage  Bushey Lea, 7 Bushey Lea, 10  The Spinney, 88 
Moreton Road, Wren Cottage 1 The Elms, 127 Longfields, 28 Marks Ave,  6 Longfields, 
60 High Street, 7 Great Lawn, Kettlebury Way, The White House. 
 
Other local areas: 
High Ongar: 26 Millfield,  
 
Willingale: 6 Rose Cottages   
 
Fyfield: 59 Fyfield Road, Carisbrooke  Ongar Road   
 
Marden Ash:  1 Coopers Hill, 29 Coopers Hill, 57 Coopers Hill,  10 Woodland Way, 
Splendid Hand Car Wash Limited  1-3 Coopers Hill, 65, 93  Longfields 
 
Out of area: 
7 Waverley Lodge, Stratford 
 
The objections received are summarised as follows: 
 

• Green Belt 
• Works have already started 
• Existing car wash next door and others in locality.  New one not needed 
• Existing facilities may suffer 
• Highway safety 
• Poor visibility 
• No right of way over access 
• Traffic conflict 
• Harmful to pedestrian safety 
• Damage to trees has already taken place and more may occur 

Page 31



• Contamination, pollution of Cripsey Brook, potential impact on nearby nature 
reserve and protected species 

• Increased flood risk 
• Harm to visual amenity 

  
A strong objection has also been received from the owners of the adjacent site, concerned 
regarding the provision of a car wash next door. They are also concerned that access is 
not possible without either provision of a new dropped kerb, or crossing land under their 
ownership, which they will not permit. 
 
Letters of support have been received from: 
 
Ongar:  
1 High Street, 1, 2, 88 Mill Lane, 1, 21, 24, 31 Rodney Road, 1 St Helens Mews  80 High 
Street, 10, 33, 34, 35, 52  Great Stony Park, 10, 17 London Road,  
37, 57, 101, 283 High Street, 6, 8, 14, 107, 120 Queensway, 12 St James Avenue,  9, 58, 
122 Longfields, 13, 36 Springfield Close, 13 St Peters Avenue, 59, 69 (2 letters), 83, 119 
Cripsey Avenue, 14, 28 Bowes Drive , 14 The Spinney, 15 Shakletons 17 Mill Grove (2 
letters), 5, 17 Shelley Close, 19 The Gables, 2 Bowes House, 2 King Street (3 letters), 20 
Stanley Place, 22 Millfield, 25 Fyfield Road, 28 Castle Street, 28 Onslow Gardens, 3 
Fyfield Road, 3 (2 letters), 43Moreton Road, 33 Green Walk (2 letters), 33 Landview 
Gardens, 35, 49 Acres Avenue, 35 Shortlands Avenue (2 letters), 4 Barrons Close, 4 
Fairfield Road, 4 Queens Terrace, 5 Carters Yard, 5 Kettlebury Way, 5 Milton Crescent, 8, 
577 Walter Mead Close, 29 Frank Bretton House  Bansons Way, 5 Station Court  
Bansons Way, 6 King Street, 56, 66, 69 The Gables, 7 Betjeman Way, 74 Moreton Road, 
3d Bansons Yard, 8 Hunters Chase, 8 Brookfields, 9 Woodland Way, C of London  Four 
Wantz Corner, Ellensmead  Stondon Road, The Leys  Chelmsford Road, Oak House  
Toot Hill Road, Property Support Services  3 Bansons Yard,  Rod Foster Vehicle Repairs 
Unit 2  Bansons Yard, Roka  Brentwood Road, Studio 1 Photography  High Street (2 
letters), Sunnyview  High Ongar Road, Millar Europe Ltd 3a Bansons Yard, Anchor Fish 
Bar, Auckingford House 
   
Other local areas: 
Fyfield: 22 Forest Drive, 36 Walker Avenue; Beaumans,  Fozyats Ongar Road; Little 
Witney Green; Meadow View, Mill Lodge, Queen Street 
Abridge: 51 Pancroft,  
Marden Ash: 57 Woodland Way,  
Willingale: 7 Wood Lane, The Barn  Silver Lane, The Lodge Nether House  Bassetts Lane;  
Ingatestone: 6 South Court, 71 Roman Road, 72 Orchard Piece, Ashridge  Nine Ashes 
Road, Blewgates Farm, Norton Heath Equestrian Centre, The Toll House, The Old 
Rectory; 251, 265 Nine Ashes Road 
Stapleford Abbotts: Belvoir  Oak Hill Road     
Leaden Roding: 32 Lordswood View   
Stanford Rivers: Ashbury Cottage, Clarks Farm, The Rectory  Church Road  
Stapleford Tawney: Bons Farm 
Toot Hill: Clunes House   
Pedlars End: Little Laver Road, Horseshoe Cottage, The Owls     
Moreton: Greens Farm, Wood Farm, 1 Corner Cottages  
Bobbingworth: New House Farm  New House Lane   
 

Page 32



Out of Area: 
Brentwood: 41 Great Fox Meadow,  43 Gloucester Road, 58 Robin Hood Road, 82 Hutton 
Road, 88 London Road, 16 Reeves Close, 25 Hawksmoor Green, 3 Spalt Close, Mulberry 
House, 29 Tower Hill 
Kelvedon Hatch: 6 Shortcroft, 13 The Finchingfields 2 Kelvedon Hall Lodge 
Doddinghurst: Brookside Cottage, Oakleigh, 31 Parsonage Field 
Chelmsford: 49 Ratcliffe Gate, Blows Barn, 2 Waibond Place, 3 Gepps Close 
47 High Street Wanstead; 7a Whitehall Close Cambridge; The Spinney   
High Easter; Walls Willows Walls Green; 10 Cedar Avenue Upminster; 102 Glengall Road   
Woodford Green; 11 Elizabeth Road Bishops Stortford; 114 Wingletye Lane RM11 3AU; 2 
Keepers Cottages Does Hill; 21 Henrys Terrace  Ongar Road Stondon Massey; 21 Roslyn 
Gardens Gidea Park; 3 Ivy Cottages  Mill End  Little Easton 
135 Aire Road  Wetherby, Yorkshire;  18 Mead Drive  Thurlestone, Devon;  
 
Reasons given for support are summarised as follows: 
 

• Established business provides a quality and competitive service for the local community 
• Alternative business is 50% more expensive 
• Will remove choice of facility from residents 
• Result in loss of jobs 
• Proposed site is undeveloped and looks undesirable since former use ceased 
• Would allow established business to relocate in the area to currently vacant site 
• Council should protect existing businesses  
• Buildings are small and simple in design 
• Proposals would not affect traffic 
• Should be allowed as brownfield regeneration scheme 
• Council should support businesses as well as providing housing 

 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues to be considered are: 

• the principle of the change of use 
• the structures in the Green Belt,  
• the impact to openness,  
• conservation area,  
• highway,  
• contamination,  
• flood plain,  
• trees and landscape,  
• street scene and neighbouring amenity, and  
• the economics of the retention of an established business should also be considered. 

 
Green Belt 
In principle the provision of development in the Green Belt is unacceptable, the use of the site as a 
car wash is not identified under any exemptions in policy GB2A. Furthermore, the provision of a 
30m long building, associated access road, parking and other structures, on a previously vacant 
site would have significant impacts on openness and irrespective of topography would detract from 
existing views into present green wedge running through Ongar along Cripsey Brook.  The site is 
not previously developed land. 
 
Conservation Area 

Page 33



In respect of the Conservation Area, the advice received by officers is that a lot of green space is 
retained on site between the built development and the boundary to the conservation area to the 
north, which when coupled with the retention of the tree screen will mean that the proposals will 
not have a significant adverse impact on the setting of the Conservation Area.  
 
Highways 
The access proposed for use is off an existing bend, in an area used by an existing car wash. The 
red line of the site is within the applicant’s ownership, the existing crossover is outside of the 
application site. The crossover is used by the adjacent existing car wash, they have submitted 
copies of deeds indicating they have control over the crossover and would not permit additional 
access. Highways have also objected to increased use of this access on the bend in a location 
where the thoroughfare of traffic is a priority and as the access is not suitable to serve two 
conflicting entry/egress points. These are considered serious highway safety issues and beyond 
possible mitigation by condition. The evident conflict over land ownership is also a concern as, 
were the use to be permitted, notwithstanding other issues, it may be that access cannot be 
provided as indicated.  A differing access may conflict with the existing bridge over Crispey Brook 
or cause further Green Belt or Conservation Area issues as due to site topography, ground level 
changes would likely be required for a new access. 
 
Existing Contamination 
The site may be contaminated from previous allotment use,  however any issues could be 
overcome by the use of standard conditions. 
 
Flooding and drainage 
The site is part of the functional flood plain, for this reason there is an objection from the 
Environment Agency and land drainage. There is concern that due to the use proposed, in event 
of a flood, detergents associated with the use could inadvertently find their way into Cripsey Brook. 
It would be possible to attach drainage conditions requiring approval of details of suitable drainage 
systems and storage of associated detergents and chemicals to prevent incidents, but it is not 
possible to mitigate flooding in this location by condition. The additional hardsurfacing and 
buildings in addition, reduce the drainage and storage capacity of this part of the flood plain, 
increasing risk of flooding beyond the site itself, contrary to policy U2A of the Local Plan and 
Alterations and the objectives of the NPPF. 
 
Trees, landscaping and ecology 
Prior to the submission of this application the site has been partly cleared. Clearance works were 
stopped at the request of the Council and this application submitted. The Trees team are 
concerned that there has not been an adequate assessment of the trees onsite and the 
implications of the proposals on remaining trees has not been fully considered as part of this 
application. The proposals could potentially result in further harm or loss to protected trees which 
is unacceptable and contrary to Council policies. 
 
Streetscene 
The exiting site is disused and neglected, but is green and treed, the proposed use of the site 
including the buildings, hardstanding and parking areas, would be,functional in character and do 
little to enhance the character and appearance of the street in this sensitive location near to the 
Conservation Area and Town Centre. The site level falls away into the site towards the brook, 
however this would do little to obscure structures parking and activity on site. There is additional 
concern that the use would require signage which would add to the visual intrusion, althjough 
these could be restricted by condition. 
 

Page 34



Neighbouring amenity 
The site is separated from residential properties and the structures and use are such that no 
significant adverse impacts would arise to neighbouring living conditions. 
 
The neighbouring business is noted to be a car wash, however this is not an amenity consideration 
and is dealt with under economic considerations below. 
 
Economic considerations 
Many of the letters of objection that have been received were concerned with the provision of a car 
wash next door to a site that is already a car wash. Officers are unable to prohibit a business 
locating to premises next to or near competitors as this is not a planning consideration.  
 
Officers are aware that the business seeking to relocate is already established in Ongar, currently 
located in Banson’s Yard and that a recent planning permission results in the loss of their business 
premises. A large number of letters of support are keen to see the business retained in the Ongar 
area. The Council is keen to support local businesses but whilst the absence of an arranged 
alternate location for the present car wash in Banson’s Yard is regrettable, that does not justify the 
use of an inappropriate site with poor access. 
 
The current application has been submitted without pre-application discussions with the Council, 
however Officers would be happy to discuss alternate sites for a car wash. The circumstances of 
this application are regrettable, but in this instance the site chosen by the applicant is simply not 
suitable. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is recommended that permission be refused due to the location of 
the site and inappropriate use in the Green Belt and in the Flood Plain. Furthermore the proposals 
result in unacceptable impacts to highway safety, preserved trees and street scene contrary to the 
aims and objectives of the Local Plan and Alterations and the NPPF. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Jenny Cordell 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564481 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 35



123  
 
 

 
  

 

52.7m

52.1m

53.3m

56.1m

3 9

4 3

42

1 1  t o  1 4

28

3 1

32a

2 1

3

1 9
b

S ur ger y

B uxtonCo u r t

3 1

S wi ft Hous e

1 9

PO

7

PO

3

1 2

2 5

1

1 9

11

2 4

25

18

1 1

22

6

7  t
o  1

0

1

2

1

10

5

1 1
3

1 5
 t o

 1
8

The Heights

1 to 14

B u l l
Th e

Shelter

Queen
Victoria

(PH)

3

5

4
5 2

B UX TON R OA D

F O
R E

S T
 D

R I
V E

TCB

LB

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 2 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1613/13 
Site Name: 19B Forest Drive, Theydon Bois 

CM16 7EX 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 36



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1613/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 19B Forest Drive 

Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7EX 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Luigi Funedda  
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

(i) Retention of new shopfront and entrance doors. (ii) Retention of 
raised external paving for disabled access and outside customer 
seating area. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (with conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=552330 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes for the low level wall and 
railings shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in 
writing, prior to the commencement of the works for the wall and railings. The wall 
and railings shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
  

 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than two objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is a two-storey building located at the junction of Buxton Road and Forest 
Drive.  It comprises of a restaurant at ground floor and flat above.  Planning permission has been 
given to carry out alterations to the building to provide a further flat in an enlarged roof space, but 
that has not been implemented. 
 
The building is within the Theydon Bois Local Centre as designated in the Local Plan Alterations.  
It is at the end of a short parade of 6 shop premises, which include one restaurant and one take-
away.  The adjacent two shops are a beauty salon and a newsagent.  Flats are above the shops. 
 
To the east and north on Buxton Road is a mix of flats and houses, the immediate neighbour being 
flats at Buxton Court.  Entrances to the flats are in the flank elevations, one of which looks to the 
application site.  Opposite the site on Forest Drive is a further parade of shops, while to the north 
on Forest Drive are houses. 

Page 37



 
Description of Proposal:  
 
Retrospective planning permission is sought for (i) Retention of new shopfront and entrance doors. 
(ii) Retention of raised external paving for disabled access and outside customer seating area. 
 
Given that the unit occupies a plot with a return frontage, the shopfront consists of two sets of 5 bi 
folding doors with the entrance door sited centrally.  
 
The raised external paving area extends from the boundary with No. 19 Forest Drive to the south 
levelling off at the corner of Forest Drive and Buxton Road as ground levels even out at this point 
to meet existing pavement level. The approximate dimensions of the raised area area are 5m x 
3.2m and raised up to a maximum height of approximately 300mm above adjacent pavement level 
and the external level at No.19 Forest Drive.  
 
The submitted drawings annotate that a low level wall is proposed adjacent to No.19 Forest Drive 
projecting out for 3.2m and across for 3.8m against the back edge of the pavement. 
 
In its previous use as an A1 retail unit, Council photographs show the difference between internal 
and external level as between approximately 100-200mm due to the slope from north to south. 
 
The raised platform provides an area for external seating and has a gentle incline in order for 
wheelchair users to access the restaurant more easily. 
 
Although no seating has been shown on the drawings there appears to be sufficient space for 
tables and chairs 
 
The raised platform is not public land as it is within the curtilage of the shop. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1381/08 Change of use from an off licence (A1) to a Restaurant (A3) – Refused 
EPF/0499/09 New shutter box and shutter - Approved 
 
EPF/1792/12 Addition of second floor flat above existing first floor, together with rear first floor 

extension, provision of side entrance to Buxton Road, and alterations to elevations - 
Approved 

 
EPF/2433/12 Change of use from purposes within Use Class A1 (shops) to use as a restaurant 

(Use Class A3) and non-material amendment to planning permission EPF/1792/12 
(Addition of second floor flat above existing first floor, together with rear first floor 
extension, provision of side entrance to Buxton Road and alterations to elevations) 
comprising of the insertion of an additional ground floor window to the Buxton Road 
elevation – Approved 

 
EPF/1463/13 Application for approval of details reserved by condition 4 'Details of equipment' and 

condition 6 ' Ceiling/party wall installation' of planning permission EPF/2433/12 
(Change of use from purposes within Use Class A1 (shops) to use as a restaurant 
(Use Class A3) and non-material amendment to planning permission EPF/1792/12 
(Addition of second floor flat above existing first floor, together with rear first floor 
extension, provision of side entrance to Buxton Road and alterations to elevations) 
comprising of the insertion of an additional ground floor window to the Buxton Road 
elevation – No decision at time of report 

 

Page 38



EPF/1464/13 Two externally illuminated fascia signs and two non illuminated retractable canopies 
- Approved 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
DBE1  Design of New Buildings 
DBE9  Loss of Amenity 
DBE12  Shopfronts 
ST4   Road Safety 
ST6  Vehicle Parking 
 
NPPF 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received   
 
Number of neighbours consulted. 36 
Site notice posted: Yes – 29.10.13 
Responses received:   
 
Four objections have been received from: 
 
28 FOREST DRIVE (2 letters), Flats in FOREST DRIVE (full address not given) 
 
The grounds are summarised below. 
 

• Increased noise and disturbance from external seating and from inside due to shopfront 
design 

• Increase in parking 
• Cars parked without consideration to parking controls and residents 
• Food waste left outside encouraging vermin 

 
One representation has been received from 30 BUXTON ROAD stating no objection subject to: 
 

• The external area being made safe 
• Automatic entrance door for wheelchair users 
 

One letter of support has been received. The grounds are summarised below. 
 

• This unit has been empty for over three years.  The renovation has been completed in a 
tasteful and unobtrusive fashion.   

 
THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL: Objection 
 
We have serious concerns about the potential for unacceptable noise levels to emanate from the 
premises and the adverse effect this is likely to have upon the amenity of local residents. We have 
considered the noise impact carefully taking into account factors such as the number of available 
covers, extent of possible opening hours and type of (hard) flooring which has been installed – all 
factors which increase the likelihood of noise nuisance occurring. 
 
We would point out that the premises are situated not on the main thoroughfare through the village 
but within a side road comprising a parade of mixed use retail and residential properties. There are 
flats above, adjacent and opposite the retails units and owing to the heights of the properties noise 

Page 39



tends to reverberate within the immediate environs. There are also freehold properties in very 
close proximity which are likely to adversely affected.  
 
Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues and considerations relating to this proposal are: 
 

1. The design of the installed shopfront in terms of its impact on the character and 
appearance of both the host building and the surrounding area 

2. The potential noise and disturbance due to both the design of the shopfront and the 
external seating area. 

3. Highways considerations including parking issues and highway safety 
 
Character and Appearance 
 
Shopfront 
 
Policy DBE12 requires new shopfronts to be in keeping with the character and appearance of the 
upper elevations of the buildings on which they are to be situated and should not result in the 
concealment of features that contribute to the character of the building. 
 
The two sets of bi-folding doors and entrance door would not appear at odds with the first floor 
elevation and would not conceal any features that contribute to the character of the building. 
 
Notwithstanding the potential for noise escaping from inside the restaurant which will be 
addressed later in the report, the design, although different to the other shopfront designs within 
the parade, would not in itself appear as an incongruous addition within the streetscene. There is 
no uniformity to the design of the shopfronts so a design such as this is considered acceptable and 
would comply with policy DBE12 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations(2006). 
 
Raised Platform 
 
Given the size and height of the raised platform this would not appear out of character with the 
host building nor when viewed from the street. A low level wall and railings are proposed to 
enclose the area, and would not appear so conspicuous as to detract from the appearance of the 
area. A condition relating to the submission of details of materials could be attached to any 
permission to ensure the wall and railings are of a satisfactory appearance. 
 
However, it is noted that a screen approximately 1.2m high x 1m wide has been erected on the 
boundary with No.19 Forest Drive. As it is not above 2m in height this panel can be erected 
without planning permission. 
 
The proposal in terms of its design is considered to comply with policies DBE1 and DBE12 of the 
adopted Local Plan (1998) and Alterations (2006). 
 
Noise and Disturbance 
 
Policy DBE9 of the Local Plan requires that an intensification of a use, extension or new 
development does not result in an excessive loss of amenity for neighbouring properties. Four 
factors are included and these are visual impact, overlooking, loss of daylight/sunlight and noise, 
smell or other disturbance. 
 
It is not considered that either the shopfront or the raised platform would result in a material level 
of impact relating to the first three factors, however both may have the potential to impact on 
neighbours in terms of noise. 

Page 40



 
Appreciating the concerns of both neighbours and the Parish Council, this issue has been 
discussed at length with the Council’s Environment and Neighbourhoods Team that deal with, 
amongst other things, potential noise and disturbance from a particular use on the occupiers of 
neighbouring properties. The team is also aware of the objections on noise grounds. 
 
Both the issues of the raised platform, which would accommodate seating and the design of the 
shopfront with capacity to open all the doors allowing noise to spill from inside the restaurant 
externally were discussed. Furthermore, the Planning Service is aware that seating can also be 
accommodated along a narrow strip of land under the ownership of the applicant along the Buxton 
Road frontage. 
 
Taking all concerns into consideration the Environmental and Neighbourhoods Officer did not 
object to the proposal, arguing that: 
 
“Whilst I share concerns that an outside eating area and installation of entrance doors that allow 
the whole front of the property to opened up will allow noise to escape, I don’t think that the 
installation of the doors and raised area can really be said to be the cause of any potential noise 
in this case, and allow a justified objection in planning terms. 
 
I understand that the existing outside area is already included in the approved use and 
therefore could already be used by customers without this application. I understand that the 
levelling and raising of the land  accommodates the use but as the use is already there, I don’t 
think we can object even if we were satisfied that the use of this area would lead to a loss of 
amenity. Clearly there is a risk that the use outside could lead to loss of amenity or nuisance 
e.g. particularly rowdy, drunk customers that are not controlled, but equally it is possible that the 
area will not cause any significant noise if just used for an eating area.  
 
On a similar basis, whilst I share concerns that the new entrance doors provide potential for 
loss of amenity, I do not think that this is an inevitable consequence of them being installed and 
I am unable to support an objection on noise grounds.” 

 
Therefore in light of the above and taking into account the nature of the other uses in the parade, it 
is not considered inevitable that the noise and disturbance emanating from the premises would be 
at such a level to result in significant harm to the amenities of the occupiers of the neighbouring 
properties, and on balance is considered to comply with policy DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan 
and Alterations (2006) 
 
Highway Considerations 
 
This proposal does not include any change of use or clear intensification over the authorised use. 
  
Whilst objections have been raised from neighbours relating to the inconsiderate parking of diners, 
this is not something controlled by the Council’s Planning Service. These are matters for the North 
Essex Parking Partnership or the Police and sit outside of the remit of planning.  
 
Whilst the argument from neighbours is that by allowing the raised platform this would increase the 
number of covers thereby increasing the number of vehicles to the area, the fact remains, as 
mentioned above, that the existing outside area falls within the ownership of the applicant and this 
area prior to the installation of the raised platform could still be used lawfully as an external seating 
area.  
 
Therefore the proposal is considered to comply with the relevant highways policies, namely ST6 
and ST8 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations (2006) and it should be noted that the Highway 
Authority raised no objections. 

Page 41



 
Other issues 
 
The potential to not clear up food waste from the outside eating areas is recognised however this 
is not a reason for withholding planning permission. The onus is on the applicant to keep his 
premises clean and tidy and any potential issues arising from this would more likely be considered 
by the Council’s Environment and Neighbourhood Team than the Planning Service. 
 
Whilst it is appreciated that, for wheelchair users, an automatic entrance door would be preferable 
to the one installed that is opened by a handle, again this is not a reason for withholding planning 
permission. It is an improvement on the previous situation where only stepped access was 
available. There is no statutory requirement to install an automatic entrance door.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
Notwithstanding the objections received, the proposal is not considered to result in a material loss 
of amenity in either noise or highways terms. The design is considered acceptable and other 
issues raised have been considered within the report. 
 
Therefore, the proposal complies with relevant planning policy and it is recommended that 
planning permission be granted  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Steve Andrews 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564109 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 24.1m

26.5m

9a

2 5

43

2

3

S t ra t h y re
Ch a p e l

Rose Villa

T h e
L i m e s

Whitehall Cottage

11
16

Whitehall Lodge

18

Abridge

Wa y l a n d s

3
T h e  C h e stn u ts

1  t o  1 01

Mews 7

2

4

6

7

5

1

2

6
5

G
ou

ld
s

32
PO

C o
t ts

4

1

1

A u c t i o n  P l a c e

(PH)

Armoury

1

P H

5

1
7

12

Blue
Boar

1 2

The Old
Brewery

Cottage

7

1

11

4145

H a l l  H o u se

2
8

2 2

37

A  1 1 3 T H E  P O P L A R S

WH I T E  H ALL

M
A
R
K
E T

P L
A C

E
W

I L L O
W

 T RE E
C L O

SE

Sinks

TCB

LB

Cricket Ground

Abridge*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 3 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1949/13 
Site Name: MSK Stores Ltd, The White House  

Market Place, Abridge, RM4 1UA 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 44



Report Item No:3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1949/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: MSK Stores Ltd  

The White House  
Market Place  
Abridge  
Essex 
RM4 1UA 
 

PARISH: Lambourne 
 

WARD: Lambourne 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Muilvahanam Mathialagan  
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Retrospective application for retention of new side entrance to 
shop, including steps and ramped access. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=554113 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
NONE 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Description of proposal:  
    
Retrospective application for retention of new side entrance to shop, including steps and ramped 
access. 
 
The side entrance has replaced a three paned lead glass window with dimension of approximately 
1.025m high by 1.79m wide. 
 
The entrance consists of a set of double doors with approximate dimensions of 1.98m high by 
1.79m wide. The doors are above external ground floor level as internal levels are higher. In front 
of the doors is a small level decking with stepped access to one side and ramp down to the other. 
A handrail with banisters to a height of approximately 1.3m above external ground level has also 
been erected. The overall width of the wooden structure is approximately 3.45m. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The property is a three storey detached building with its current use as A1 retail ground floor with 
accommodation above. It is within the Abridge local shopping area. The surrounding area is 

Page 45



predominately mixed residential and commercial with the Maltsters Arms (a Grade II Listed 
Building) public house to the west and residential properties to the immediate east and south. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0945/77 – Alterations and Extensions – Refused 
EPF/1314/77 – Rebuilding and renovation of dilapidated house - Approved 
EPF/1322/78 - Rebuilding and renovation to a height of 25'10" – Refused 
EPF/0281/79 - Reconstruction of building to an overall height of 25ft. 4ins above DPC – Approved 
EPF/1532/08 - Conversion of ground floor A1 use to A5 take away - home deliveries – Withdrawn 
EPF/2341/08 - Conversion of ground floor A1 use to A5 take away - home deliveries. (Revised 
application) – Refused and appeal dismissed. 
 
Polices Applied: 
 
HC6 Character, Appearance and setting of Conservation Areas 
HC7 Development within Conservation Areas 
DBE9 Loss of Amenity 
ST4  Road Safety 
ST6 Vehicle Parking 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received   
 
Number of neighbours consulted. 16 
Site notice posted: Yes – erected on 30.09.13 
Responses received: 3 neighbour objections received from: 
 
THE POPLARS, 1 GOULD COTTAGES and 3 THE LIMES 
 
The objections received are summarised as follows: 
 
- Entrance has always been at the front 
- Intrusion on neighbour – increased disturbance 
- Loss of privacy 
- Access gate being open blocks light to garden 
- Out of character with Conservation Area 
- Out of scale and overbearing 
- Wheelchair access does not comply with regulations 
- Side access encourages parking on a more regular basis. Would be detrimental to highway 

safety 
- Refrigeration units do not comply with regulations 
- Detrimental to highway safety 

 
PARISH COUNCIL: Objection on the grounds that:  
 
- This new side entrance is facing a residential property and is obtrusive for residents. The 

opening times are from 6am to 11pm and would be very disruptive 
- The new entrance is close to the bend on London Road. This would mean that customers will 

leave the shop and attempt to cross the road at the bend and would be a health and safety 
hazard 

- This shop is in a conservation area and it is not in keeping. The previous door was that of a 
house. 

 

Page 46



Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues are the impact of this proposal on the character and appearance of the building 
and the Conservation Area, impact on neighbouring occupiers living conditions and issues of 
highway safety and parking. 
 
Effect on Character and Appearance 
 
A three paned window has been replaced with the double doors and ramped access described 
above. The site lies within a Conservation Area but the building itself is neither listed nor locally 
listed. 
 
In terms of the impact on the Conservation Area, the Council’s Conservation Officer, consulted on 
this application, considers that neither the door nor ramp have a detrimental impact on the 
character or appearance of the building or the conservation area. The doors are of an appropriate 
scale for the side elevation of the property, and the ramp is a reversible addition in a suitable 
material. 
 
The front door remains in situ so the main frontage is unchanged. 
 
Therefore the works would comply with policies HC6 and HC7 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations. 
 
Living Conditions 
 
The use of the unit at ground floor level remains the same, as a retail unit. There are no conditions 
attached to the use that restricts the opening hours  
 
Turning to the works undertaken, these are to the eastern elevation, which is at an angle between 
the flank elevation of No. 1 Goulds Cottages and the road. Although the door and raised decking is 
approximately 400mm above external ground floor level with open views directly towards the side 
of No. 1 Goulds Cottages, there are no ground floor level flank windows in that property. There is 
one side window between ground and first floor level; however from Council records this serves 
the stairs. Therefore it is considered that no material loss of privacy would occur. Views of the front 
of this property are open so anyone using the pavement on this side of the road would already 
have clear views of the side of this property. Whilst it is recognised that the use of this side of the 
building results in more activity in this location, the fact remains that pubic views are currently 
afforded into this area of the dwelling. 
 
The works cannot be described as overbearing and will not physically impact on the living 
conditions of neighbours. 
 
With regards to additional noise and disturbance, the Council’s Environmental Health Team has 
been consulted on this application and the proposal was discussed with them.  
 
Whilst they can see that there is some potential for the customers coming and going being more 
evident to the neighbour, they do not consider this would produce a significant increase in noise 
compared with the use of the front door, taking into account existing background noise from traffic. 
On that basis they have no objection. 
 
The use of the yard adjacent to the building for parking is historic and a dropped kerb is in place. 
This means that vehicles can and have been able to access this area between the nearest 
dwelling at No. 1 Goulds Cottages and the side of the application building for a number of years. It 
is not considered that the use of the new side entrance would increase the number of vehicles in 
and out of the site to a degree that would result in an increase in noise or disturbance which would 

Page 47



materially detract from the neighbours living conditions.  The parking area is only large enough for 
two vehicles. 
 
There has been concern raised by the nearest neighbour that the gate within the application site 
blocks light into their property.  Whilst the 2 metre metal gate is unneighbourly and unsightly when 
open, it has been on site for well over 4 years and is not part of this application and there is no 
planning control over whether it is kept open.   
 
Policy DBE9 considers that visual impact; overlooking; loss of daylight/sunlight and impact from 
noise, smell or other disturbance shall be assessed to ensure that any new development would not 
result in an excessive loss of amenity for neighbouring properties. These issues have been 
considered above and whilst there is some minor impact it is not considered that there is 
excessive harm to amenity.  Therefore the proposal is considered to comply with this policy. 
 
Highway Issues 
 
No new access or parking spaces are proposed as the site has space for two cars and the scheme 
would not preclude the use of the parking space for cars for occupants of the residential flats. 
 
ECC Highways have raised no objection to the use of the existing parking and access for the site 
notwithstanding its siting adjacent to a busy roundabout and on a bend.  
 
Therefore, notwithstanding the objection from the Parish Council, given that there are no 
objections from the Highways Authority the proposal would comply with policies ST4 and ST6 of 
the Local Plan. 
 
Response to Parish Council and Neighbour representations 
 
Many of the objections received have been considered in the main body of the report above 
however an objection has been received on the grounds that the ramp does not meet planning or 
building regulations. There are no planning regulations relating to the ramp and upon discussion 
with the Council’s Building Control Team there is nothing to preclude them from providing a ramp 
at this angle. Whilst arguably a shallower angle may be safer, it is no worse than the concrete 
stepped entrance to the front door and could be seen as an improvement in accessibility. Refusal 
based on the angle of the ramp is not considered justified.  
 
The objection relating to the refrigeration unit, this element does not form part of the application 
however the Council’s Planning Enforcement Team and Environmental Health Officers have 
investigated and there is no breach of regulation. 
 
Conclusion 
 
For the reasons above the scheme is recommended for approval. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:  Steve Andrews 
Direct Line Telephone Number: (01992) 564109 
 
Or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 48



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 
 

 
123  

 
 

 
  

 

90.5m
89.9m

Stooks

The

3Elms

Mineouse
1

Isabella
Cottages

Hook Lane
Nurseries

Tinoth Lodge 8

1T u t t l e b y  C o t t a g e s

PondEFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 4 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/1953/13 
Site Name: 1 Tuttleby Cottages, Manor Road  

Lambourne End, RM4 1NA 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 Page 50



Report Item No:4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1953/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1 Tuttleby Cottages  

Manor Road  
Lambourne End  
Romford  
Essex 
RM4 1NA 
 

PARISH: Lambourne 
 

WARD: Lambourne 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Chris Waters 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Proposed single storey side extension and conservatory to rear. 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=554152 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The render and roof tile to be used for the external finishes of the proposed 
extension and conservatory, shall match those of the existing building, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

3 The existing hedge on the east boundary, positioned alongside the proposed side 
extension, shall be retained (or treated and replanted as necessary after works are 
completed), and shall be subsequently retained on a permanent basis. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from the local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal - (pursuant 
to the constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, schedule 1, 
appendix A (g).   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Single storey side extension, and conservatory to rear.  
  
Description of Site: 
 
2 storey semi detached dwelling located in the Green Belt but in a built up enclave to the west the 
junction of Manor Road and Hook Lane. The property is not listed nor does it lie within a 
Conservation area. 
  

Page 51



Relevant History:  
 
EPF/0083/08 gave approval to a two storey side extension, and this extension has been built.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A - Development in the Green Belt.            
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
DBE10 – Residential extensions 
 
Policies DBE9 and DBE10 are compliant with the NPPF, and policy GB2A is generally compliant. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
LAMBOURNE PARISH COUNCIL – do not object to the rear conservatory but it is felt the single 
storey side extension is detrimental to the street scene. This is a row of terraced cottages and this 
extension would not be in keeping and would appear overcrowded. There is a gas bottle in the 
front garden, and blocking the side access would result in people having no escape route to the 
rear of the property if they were in danger. 
  
NEIGHBOURS – two consulted and one reply received:- 
 
2, TUTTLEBURY COTTAGES - we are concerned about the proposed rear conservatory wall 
beside our kitchen, as we are afraid it will block light, and for this reason we object to this plan. 
  
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The proposed rear conservatory will project 3m beyond the ground floor rear wall of the application 
property and the adjoining semi at no.2. It will also be positioned 0.2m away from the boundary 
thus allowing for the retention of an existing privacy fence panel some 1.6m in height. A depth of 
3m is ‘allowed’ by policy DBE10, and for these reasons the proposed rear conservatory extension 
will not have an undue affect on the light and outlook to the neighbours kitchen and garden. In this 
respect therefore the concern of the neighbour at no.2 is not shared. 
 
The proposed side extension will be built up to the side boundary with the other neighbouring 
house at the Elms, a large bungalow. This side extension is only a ground floor one and a 
cramped development affect will therefore not be caused. It is acknowledged that this property has 
been extended at the side before but the fronts of these houses are well recessed from the road – 
and consequently the additional side extension will have a limited impact on the appearance of the 
street scene. This side extension will have some impact on the neighbouring bungalow The Elms 
which lies in a more recessed position. However this neighbouring bungalow lies at an angle 
facing away from the boundary, and in addition the applicant has confirmed that the existing hedge 
on this boundary will be retained thus reducing the impact of the side extension.  
 
Policy GB2A requires extensions to houses located in the Green Belt to be ‘limited’. The proposed 
additions, together with the two storey side extension built following the approval of EPF/0083/08, 
add 45% floor area to the original house. Having regard to the location of this house in a built up 
enclave, particularly the very large bungalows to the immediate east, and a large commercial 
nursery to the rear, this 45% increase is not considered excessive, and it will have a minimal 
impact on the open character of the Green Belt. 
 
Comments on representations received: 
 
The Parish Council’s concern about a cramped development and effect on the street scene, 
together with the neighbour’s concern about loss of light, have been addressed above. With regard 

Page 52



to the gas container in the front garden, the applicant, who has just acquired the house, states that 
this will be removed and a replacement placed below ground in the rear garden.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed additions are quite modest in size, and for the reasons outlined above, conditional 
planning permission is recommended. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 

123  
 
 

 
  

 

50.3m

48.8m

49.4m

49.4m

50.9m

Brook Cottage

M
U

TTO
N

 R
O

W

Pond

P a
t h  

( u m
)

FB

T ra c k

P a t h  ( u m )

P a
t h  

( u m
)

Tr a ck

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 5 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © Crown 
Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 100018534 
 
Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013 
 

 
Application Number: EPF/2099/13 
Site Name: Brook Cottage, Mutton Row 

Stanford Rivers,  
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 
 Page 54



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2099/13 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Brook Cottage 

Mutton Row 
Stanford Rivers 
Ongar 
Essex 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Tim Gray 
 

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL: 

Part one and part two storey rear extension, and provision of an 
enlarged porch at the side. (Revised application to EPF/0223/13) 
 

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION: 

Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=554854 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 

4 Access to the site shall only be via the existing bridge to the south of the site. Details 
of any additional access point for any vehicles, whether temporary or permanent, 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to being 
installed or used. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from the local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal - (pursuant 
to the constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, schedule 1, 
appendix A (g).   
 
Description of Proposal: 

Page 55



 
Part one and two storey rear extension, and provision of enlarged porch at the side.  
  
Description of Site: 
 
2 storey dwelling located in an isolated and rural location within the Green Belt. It also stands 
within the curtilage of a listed building which lies to the south. The site is well screened by mature 
trees.  
  
Relevant History:  
 
EPF/839/93 gave approval to the erection of a dwelling to replace the existing listed dwelling on 
the site which had been subject to flood damage. 
 
EPF/223/13 was a refusal, on planning officer recommendation, of an application proposing a 2 
storey and single storey side extension on grounds, firstly, that the extensions were not limited and 
would detract from the open character of the Green Belt, and secondly, the side extensions would 
detract from the setting of the original listed dwelling on the site.  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A - Development in the Green Belt.            
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
DBE10 – Residential extensions 
HC12 – Development affecting the setting of listed buildings 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention. 
 
Policies DBE9 and DBE01 are compliant with the NPPF, policy GB2A is generally compliant, and 
policy HC12 is partially compliant - the NPPF states that if substantial harm is caused to the 
setting of a listed then a development should be refused. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
STANFORD RIVERS PARISH COUNCIL – Object – the proposal, by reason of its bulk and 
position, would be a disproportionate enlargement of the dwelling. The proposal therefore 
represents inappropriate development which would cause harm to the open character of the Green 
Belt, contrary to policy GB2A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations, and also contrary to the 
NPPF. In addition, the proposed extensions, by reason of their bulk and position, would result in a 
dwelling that would dominate the listed building on the site.  
  
NB.  The Parish Council raised no objection to the previous application for longer extensions. 
 
NEIGHBOURS – there are no neighbours and no response to site notice. 
 
EFDC CONSERVATON OFFICER – The replacement Brook Cottage built in the early 1990’s 
occupies the same footprint as the original cottage, and a condition withdrew permitted 
development rights so as to protect the open character of the Green Belt - and to ensure the new 
dwelling remained of equal status to the original dwelling and did not dominate its setting. The 
replacement dwelling was allowed under exceptional circumstances, so any substantial extensions 
or additions should be viewed critically. In addition a development of this kind would not normally 
have been allowed in the curtilage of a listed building like Brook Cottage, so its presence on the 
site should not be accentuated by substantially increasing its volume. Although the size of the 
proposed extension has been reduced following the previous application, it is believed that the 
extension will still have a detrimental impact on the setting of the listed cottage by increasing the 
dominance of the newer building on the site. The bulk of the extension has been moved to the 

Page 56



north, further away from the listed building - however, it will still result in a significant increase in 
the size of the property. I therefore recommend refusal of this application as supported by policy 
HC12 of the Local Plan and Alterations. 
  
Issues and Considerations: 
 
In 1993 planning permission was approved for a new dwelling to be erected in the north part of this 
site to replace a listed cottage in the south of the site. This listed cottage had been extensively 
damaged by flooding owing to its position close to a stream, and the Council agreed that 
exceptional circumstances warranted the erection of a new dwelling on higher land further away 
from the stream. The former cottage was to be retained as an outbuilding for the new dwelling. 
 
The application lodged earlier this year was reported to the Area Plans East Committee in July and 
it was refused in accordance with officer recommendation for the reasons set out above under 
‘relevant history’. As is normal practice on refusals the July report contained a ‘is there a way 
forward’ section, and this stated that a revised application proposing a smaller side extension 
and/or a rear extension which would face away from the listed building, would be more likely to be 
acceptable. 
 
A rear extension on the north side of the house is now proposed. The listed building lies to the 
south and hence the proposed extension will be largely masked by the existing house, and hence 
will have a reduced impact on the setting of the listed building. In addition whilst Policy HC12 of 
the Local Plan states that the Council will not grant planning permission for development which 
could adversely affect the setting of a listed building, the NPPF states that substantial harm should 
be caused to warrant refusal. Although the views of the Conservation officer on this application are 
acknowledged it is not felt that this revised proposal will cause substantial harm to the setting of 
the listed building. 
 
The previous application was also rejected on grounds that the proposed extensions were not 
limited additions and would detract from the open character of the Green Belt. A 63% increase in 
floor space was proposed on the previous application but this has now been reduced to a 48% 
increase. In addition the proposed extension is now positioned at the rear, it does not widen the 
front bulk of the house in the way the previous scheme did, and the site is well screened by mature 
trees. The existing first floor accommodation is also quite small for family occupation with some 
rooms being restricted in height by a sloping roof. Taking these factors into account the revised 
proposal is not an excessively large extension which would detract from the open character of the 
Green Belt, and the views of the Parish Council on this issue are not shared. 
  
Conclusion: 
 
This proposal has been revised sufficiently to address the previous reasons for refusal, and can be 
regarded as a limited addition, appropriate in the Green Belt, that does not cause substantial harm 
to the setting of the listed building.  Conditional planning permission is now recommended. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 

 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

t 

 Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee  
 
Date of meeting:  East – 4 December 2013 
 
 
Subject: Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions, 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013 
  
Officer contact for further information:  Nigel Richardson (01992 564110). 
Democratic Services Officer:   Mark Jenkins (01992 56424607) 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Planning Appeal Decisions be noted. 
 
Report Detail: 
 
Background 
 
1.  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) In compliance with the recommendation of 
the District Auditor, this report advises the decision-making committees of the results of all 
successful allowed appeals (i.e. particularly those refused by committee contrary to officer 
recommendation).  The purpose is to inform the committee of the consequences of their 
decisions in this respect and, in cases where the refusal is found to be unsupportable on 
planning grounds, an award of costs may be made against the Council. 
 
2. In recent years the Council performance has been 18% in 2003/04, 29% in 2004/05, 22% in 
2005/06, 30% in 2006/07, 29% in 2007/08, 40.3% for 2008/09, 30.9% in 2009/10, 36.6% in 
2010/11, 28.8% in 2011/12 and 27.7% in 2012/13.   
 
3. Since 2011/12, there have been two local indicators, one of which measures all planning 
application type appeals as a result of committee reversals of officer recommendations (KPI 55) 
and the other which measures the performance of officer recommendations and delegated 
decisions (KPI 54).    
 
Performance 
 
4. Over the six-month period between 1 April 2013 and 30 September 2013, the Council 
received 37 decisions on appeals (35 of which were planning related appeals, the other 2 were 
enforcement related).  
 
5. KPI 54 and 55 measure planning application decisions and in total, out of this 35, 14 
were allowed (40%). Broken down further, KPI 54 performance was 4 out of 20 allowed (20%) 
and KPI 55 performance was 10 out of 15 (66.67%). 

  
Planning Appeals 
 
6. Out of the 15 planning appeals that arose from decisions of the committees to refuse 
contrary to the recommendation put to them by officers during the 6-month period, the Council 
was not successful in sustaining the committee’s objection in the following 10 cases: 
 
Area Committee South 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



 
 

 
EPF/1785/12 Demolition of existing nursing home and the  152 - 154 Daneley Court 
  erection of 14 apartments and associated car Nursing Home 
  parking spaces, amenity space, bin and cycle stores,  Queens Road 
  foul and surface water drainage and landscaping. Buckhurst Hill 
  
EPF/0071/12 Single storey rear extension with flat roof 6 Chigwell Rise 
    Chigwell 
 
EPF/0160/12 Part change of use on the ground floor from C3 6 Chigwell Rise 
  Residential to D1 in order to extend the current Chigwell 
  dental surgery space 
 
EPF/0161/12 Removal of condition 8 of planning permission 6 Chigwell Rise 
  EPF/0594/10 to allow D1 use without employee Chigwell 
  living on site. 
 
EPF/0931/12 Demolition of the existing house and garage.  182 Roding Road 
  Construction of a block of five one-bedroom flats;  Loughton 
  new vehicle access cross-overs and external landscaping.   
 
 
Area Committee East 
 
EPF/1714/12 Single storey summer house and deck (revised  Orchard Villa 
 application to incorporate pitched roof and alterations  Norton Heath 
 to elevations). High Ongar 
 
EPF/2192/12 Erection of fencing (1.8m in height) and change  11A Lancaster Road 
  of use of land, currently in use for parking of  North Weald Bassett 
  residents vehicles, to residential curtilage.  
 
EPF/0834/12 Erection of 50kW microgeneration wind turbine with a  New House Farm 
  tower height of 25m and blade diameter of 19m. Vicarage Lane  
   North Weald Bassett 
 
EPF/2137/12 Minor material amendment to EPF/1333/09  Threeways House 
  (Erection of 4 bedroom house) to include  Epping Road 
  alterations to fenestration and the addition of  Ongar 
  roof lights to form a second floor of accommodation. 
 
EPF/0856/12 Retrospective application for the change of use  Cold Hall Farm 
  from barn to Car Body Repairs shop. Kiln Road 
   Stanford Rivers 
 
7. Therefore, the committees are urged to continue to heed the advice that if they are 
considering setting aside the officer’s recommendation it should only be in cases where 
members are certain they are acting in the wider public interest and where the committee officer 
can give a good indication of some success at defending the decision. As this is now highlighted 
as a separate performance target (KPI 55) it therefore potentially comes under more scrutiny.  
 
8.   Out of 2 enforcement notice appeals decided, 1 was allowed and 1 was dismissed. These 
are as follows:  
 
Allowed: 
  
ENF/0196/12 Without planning permission the change of  Cold Hall Farm 
 use from a barn to a car body repair shop Kiln Road 
   North Weald 

Page 60



 
 

 
Dismissed  
ENF/0272/12 Formation of a balcony  21 Newhall Court 
    Waltham Abbey 
 
Costs 
 
9.   During this period, there was one successful finalised award of costs made against the 
Council. Circular 03/2009 Costs Awarded in Appeals and Other Planning Proceedings (the 
“Costs Circular”) advises that, irrespective of the outcome of the appeal, costs may only be 
awarded against a party who has behaved unreasonably and thereby caused the party applying 
for costs to incur unnecessary or wasted expense in the appeal process. Costs therefore are 
rarely awarded against the appellant. The costs were as follows:- 
 
- London Lodge West, Copped Hall Estate, Epping: The appeal for cost was successful 

against the Council’s withdrawal of an enforcement notice and listed building enforcement 
notice after taking legal advice regarding the wording of the requirements for compliance 
with the notices, several months after the appeal was made. New differently worded notices 
were re-issued, but the Planning Inspector considered this was implicit in this that it was not 
expedient to serve the first notices in the form that they were and this amounted to 
unreasonable behaviour and caused the appellant to incur unnecessary expense in 
appealing. The cost amounted to £1,376.00  
 

10. Members attention is brought to the fact recent appeal changes allows Planning Inspectors 
to award costs against a party that has behaved unreasonably even if neither the Council or the 
appellant has applied for costs.   
 
Conclusions 
 
11. Whilst performance in defending appeals has improved during the last couple of years, 
Members are reminded that in refusing planning permission there needs to be justified reasons 
that in each case must be relevant, necessary, but also sound and defendable so as to avoid 
paying costs. This is more important now then ever given a Planning Inspector or the Secretary 
of State can  even if neither side has made an application for them. Whilst there is clearly 
pressure on Members to refuse in cases where there are objections from local residents, these 
views (and only when they are related to the planning issues of the case) are one of a number of 
the relevant issues to balance out in order to understand the merits of the particular 
development being applied for.   
 
12.  Finally, at a previous request from Planning Services Scrutiny Standing Panel, appended to 
this report are the 15 appeal decision letters, which are the result of Members reversing the 
planning officer’s recommendation (and therefore refusing planning permission) at planning 
committees, 10 of which were allowed and granted planning permission.    
 
13. A full list of appeal decisions over this six month period appears below. 
 
 
Appeal Decisions April 2013 to September 2013 
 
Allowed With Conditions 
 
Buckhurst Hill 
1 EPF/1785/12 Demolition of existing nursing home and the  152 - 154 Daneley Court 
  erection of 14 apartments and associated car Nursing Home 
  parking spaces, amenity space, bin and cycle stores,  Queens Road 

Page 61



 
 

  foul and surface water drainage and landscaping.   
  
Chigwell 
2 EPF/0161/12 Removal of condition 8 of planning permission  6 Chigwell Rise 
  EPF/0594/10 to allow D1 use without employee  
  living on site. 
  
3 EPF/0071/12 Single storey rear extension with flat roof. 6 Chigwell Rise 
 
4 EPF/0160/12 Part change of use on the ground floor from  6 Chigwell Rise 
 C3 Residential to D1 in order to extend the current  
 dental surgery space.  
 
High Ongar 
5 EPF/1714/12 Single storey summer house and deck (revised  Orchard Villa 
 application to incorporate pitched roof and alterations  Norton Heath 
 to elevations).  
 
Loughton 
6 EPF/0931/12 Demolition of the existing house and garage.  182 Roding Road 
  Construction of a block of five one-bedroom flats;  
  new vehicle access cross-overs and external landscaping.   
 
7 EPF/0978/12 Erection of new two storey dwelling adjoining  2 Nevill Way 
  no.2 Nevill Way, including widening of existing   
 vehicular crossover at the front. 
 
North Weald Bassett 
8 EPF/2192/12 Erection of fencing (1.8m in height) and change  11A Lancaster Road 
  of use of land, currently in use for parking of  
  residents vehicles, to residential curtilage.  
 
9 EPF/0834/12 Erection of 50kW microgeneration wind turbine with a  New House Farm 
  tower height of 25m and blade diameter of 19m. Vicarage Lane  
 
Ongar 
10 EPF/2137/12 Minor material amendment to EPF/1333/09  Threeways House 
  (Erection of 4 bedroom house) to include  Epping Road 
  alterations to fenestration and the addition of   
  roof lights to form a second floor of accommodation. 
  
Roydon 
11 EPF/2057/12 Removal of condition 6 'Personal user' of  Field adjacent to 
  planning permission EPF/1458/07. (Erection of  Friars Lodge  
  4 x loose boxes with tack room and hay  Tylers Road  
  storage, wooden construction fixed to concrete  
  base inside (field adjacent to Friars Lodge) 
Stanford Rivers 
12 EPF/0856/12 Retrospective application for the change of use  Cold Hall Farm 
  from barn to Car Body Repairs shop. Kiln Road 
 
Allowed without conditions 
 
Loughton 
13 EPF/0003/13 Provision of a) one internally illuminated  Topps Tiles  
  individual letter sign at fascia level (Sign 1) and  (part of Browns of  
  one non-illuminated double sided pole or post   Loughton) 
  sign at front of forecourt (Sign 2) (Revised application)  Unit 2 & 3 Station Road  
 
Matching 

Page 62



 
 

14 EPF/2136/12 Change of use of paddock area to residential  Pond House 
  curtilage and erection of a two storey detached house  Matching Green 
  and detached garage. Formation of new road access  
  (Revised Application)   
 
Dismissed 
 
Buckhurst Hill 
15 EPF/0149/13 Proposed side/rear extension and loft  134 Forest Edge 
  conversion.  
 
16 EPF/2446/12 Two storey side and rear extension (alternative  82 Princes Road 
  scheme to EPF/2447/12).   
 
17 EPF/2447/12 Proposed two storey side and rear extension  82 Princes Road 
  (alternative scheme to EPF/2446/12)  
 
Chigwell 
18 EPF/0279/13 Retrospective planning application to retain loft  225 Lambourne Road 
  conversion involving an increase to the ridge of   
  the roof, three front dormers and rear dormer   
  including proposed reduction in size of rear dormer. 
 
19 EPF/0435/13 First floor side/part two storey rear extension  2 Chigwell Park  
  and part single storey rear extension. (Revised    
  application)   
 
20 EPF/2466/12 Livery facility comprising menage, loose boxes,  Land off Millers Lane 
  associated tack room, hay store, utility room  accessed between 
   and car parking spaces Billingsbourne Barn and 
   Billingsbourne Farm 
 
 
21 EPF/0516/12 Erection of replacement dwelling. 48 Stradbroke Drive  
 
Epping 
22 EPF/1125/12 Demolition of existing garage and store shed  Treetops Care Home 
  and construction of four storey side extension to  23-25 Station Road 
  provide additional bed space to existing care   
  home. 
 
23 EPF/0609/13 Loft conversion, double storey rear and ground  60 Bower Hill 
  floor side extensions.(Revised application)  
 
High Ongar 
24 EPF/1746/12 Change of use to residential, demolition of existing  L W & G L Pavitt 
  commercial buildings and erection of 2 new detached  164 Nine Ashes Road 
  dwellings, with greywater recycling pond and  Nine Ashes 
  associated paddock areas.   
 
25 EPF/2416/12 Two storey side extension. 74 Mill Lane 
 
Loughton 
26 EPF/1755/12 Proposed conversion of storage garages to new  Lioncare Ltd 
  Yoga and Pilates Studio including ground and first  186 Forest Road 
  floor extensions and demolition of outbuilding.  
 
27 EPF/1899/12 First floor extension above garage. 63 The Lindens 
 
Nazeing 

Page 63



 
 

28 EPF/0469/13 Extension to first floor on both sides and loft  Kifri 
  conversion. Middle Street  
 
Sheering 
29 EPF/0574/13 Replacement carport. Alice Springs  
   Sawbridgeworth Road  
 
30 EPF/2392/12 Partial demolition of existing bungalow and  3 Crown Close  
  erection of new detached dwelling.  
 
31 EPF/1834/12 Proposed new 3 bedroom detached, two storey house  The Orchard 
  with parking and proposed new garden area.  Queens Head Yard 
  (Resubmitted application) The Street 
 
Theydon Bois 
32 EPF/1245/12 Erection of sliding gates across vehicular access  1 Ivy Cottage Mews 
  at front of site, removal of section of infected hedge  Theydon Park Road 
  and planting of replacement hedge.  
 
Waltham Abbey 
33 EPF/0278/13 Two-storey front extension and rear balcony area 29 Woodgreen Road 
 
34 EPF/1240/12 Retention of metal railings on extension roof for  21 Newhall Court 
  balcony on rear of building.  
 
35 EPF/0789/13 Two storey side and part two storey/part single  75 Honey Lane  
  storey rear extension.  
 
Enforcement Appeal: Allowed with Conditions 
 
1 ENF/0196/12 Without planning permission the change of  Cold Hall Farm 
 use from a barn to a car body repair shop Kiln Road 
   North Weald 
 
Enforcement Appeal Dismissed 
 
2 ENF/0272/12 Formation of a balcony  21 Newhall Court 
    Waltham Abbey 

Page 64



 
 

 

Page 65



 
 

 

 

Page 66



 
 

 

 

Page 67



 
 

 

 

Page 68



 
 

 

 

Page 69



 
 

 

 

Page 70



 
 

 

 

Page 71



 
 

 

 

Page 72



 
 

 

 

Page 73



 
 

 

 

Page 74



 
 

 

 

Page 75



 
 

 

 

Page 76



 
 

 

 

Page 77



 
 

 

 

Page 78



 
 

 

 

Page 79



 
 

 

 

Page 80



 
 

 
 

 

Page 81



 
 

 

 

Page 82



 
 

 

 

Page 83



 
 

 

 

Page 84



 
 

 

 

Page 85



 
 

 

 

Page 86



 
 

 

 

Page 87



 
 

 

 

Page 88



 
 

 

 

Page 89



 
 

 

 

Page 90



 
 

 

 

Page 91



 
 

 

 

Page 92



 
 

 

 

Page 93



 
 

 

 

Page 94



 
 

 

 

Page 95



 
 

 

 

Page 96



 
 

 
 

 

Page 97



 
 

 

 

Page 98



 
 

 

 

Page 99



 
 

 

 

Page 100



 
 

 

Page 101



 
 

 

Page 102



 
 

 

Page 103



 
 

 

Page 104



 
 

 

Page 105



 
 

 

Page 106



 
 

 

Page 107



 
 

 

Page 108



 
 

 

Page 109



 
 

 

Page 110



 
 

 

Page 111



 
 

 

Page 112



 
 

 

Page 113



 
 

 

Page 114



 
 

 

Page 115



 
 

  
 

Page 116


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee East - members photo sheet 12-13

	3 MINUTES
	Minutes
	65 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
	8 Probity in Planning - Appeal Decisions, 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013

